
    

Notice of a meeting of 
 

Joint Standards Committee Hearings Sub-Committee 
 
To: Councillors Pavlovic and Rowley BEM (CYC Members) 

Councillor Rawlings (Parish Council Member) 
 
Mr Oram (Independent Person) 
 

Date: Friday, 2 September 2022 
 

Time: 2.00 pm 
 

Venue: The George Hudson Board Room - 1st Floor West 
Offices (F045) 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. Appointment of Chair    
 To appoint a Member to chair the hearing. 

 
2. Declarations of Interest    
 At this point in the meeting, Members are asked to declare any 

disclosable pecuniary interest or other registerable interest they 
might have in respect of business on this agenda, if they have 
not already done so in advance on the Register of Interests. 
 

3. Exclusion of Press and Public    
 To consider whether to exclude the Press and Public during the 

deliberations and decision-making at the end of the hearing. 

 
4. Complaint Against Councillor E Pearson 

(City of York Council and Haxby Town 
Council)   

(Pages 1 - 86) 

 To consider a complaint made against the above Member of City 
of York Council and Haxby Town Council, which has been 
referred to the Hearings Sub-Committee for determination 
following an investigation. 
 

5. Urgent Business    
 Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the 

Local Government Act 1972. 



 

 
Democratic Services officer responsible for this meeting: 
 
Name: Fiona Young 
Contact details: 

 Telephone – (01904) 551027 

 E-mail – fiona.young@york.gov.uk 
 
 
 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democratic Services officer responsible for servicing this meeting: 
 

 Business of the meeting 

 Any special arrangements 

 Copies of reports and 

 For receiving reports in other formats 
 

Contact details are set out above. 
 

 

 
 



 

 1 

 

  

 

   

 

Standards Hearing Sub Committee 2 September 2022 

 

Councillor E Pearson (City of York Council and Haxby Town Council) 

 

Complainants:  Councillor Mark Guilford (Haxby Town Council) 

Subject Councillor: Councillor E Pearson (City of York Council and 

Haxby Town Council) 

Investigator:  Stephen Pearson, Freeths Solicitors 

 

Background 

The complaint was brought by Haxby Town Councillor Mark Guilford, 

against Councillor E Pearson of City of York Council and Haxby Town 

Council. 

The complaint relates to the following allegations: 

 It is alleged that Councillor E Pearson, prior to his co-option to the 

Town Council, verbally attacked Councillor Guilford at his home 

with regard to Councillor Guilford’s alleged interference in a 

proposal to turn a local scout hut into a branch library; 

 

 It is alleged that Councillor E Pearson acted in a disrespectful 

manner in seeking to overrule the decision of the Town Council 

following criticism of the Town Council made within a local 

newspaper, and his attempt to override the Town Council’s 

reservations concerning an application for grant monies; 

 

 Councillor E Pearson is accused of being one of a group of 

Councillors seeking to overrule the decision of the Town Council 

with regard to not placing a duck house and duck shelters around 

the village due to the Town Council reflecting concerns raised by 

Page 1 Agenda Item 4



 

 2 

residents with regard to the proposal; 

 

 It is alleged that Councillor E Pearson verbally attacked Councillor 

Guilford over the Town Council’s refusal to permit construction to 

take place on the village green; 

 

 Councillor E Pearson is alleged to have threatened Councillor 

Guilford with a campaign against him if he did not ensure that his 

mother, Councillor Ruth Pearson, did not get “what she wanted”. 

 

The Investigating Officer, Stephen Pearson of Freeths Solicitors, was 

asked to investigate the complaint.  The Complaint and Mr S Pearson’s 

report can be found at Annex A.  City of York Council’s [previous] Code 

of Conduct and the Code of Conduct for Haxby Town Council can also 

be found at Annex A.  It will be noted from the report that Mr S Pearson 

is of the opinion that Councillor E Pearson: 

 has breached paragraph 3(1) of the City of York Council 

Code of Conduct, and paragraph 3.1 of the Haxby Town 

Council Code of Conduct, in that he has behaved on at least 

one occasion, in a manner which is not respectful towards 

Councillor Guilford and other Members of the Haxby Town 

Council. 

 

 (on balance) can be demonstrated to have behaved in a 

manner which is bullying/intimidatory and I find that he has 

not breached paragraph 3(3) of the City of York Code of 

Conduct. 

 

 has sought to improperly confer an advantage on a person 

(constituting a breach within paragraph 3.1 of the Haxby 

Town Council Code and also paragraph 3(8) of the City of 

York Council Code of Conduct) (being his mother who was 

also elected to Haxby Town Council) by making 

inappropriate threats to support her political ambitions.  In 

light of the clear personal conflict of interest demonstrated he 

should not have been involved in her appointment to 

Committees of Haxby Town Council any way. 

 

 

Page 2



 

 3 

The Investigation Report has been shared with the Parties.  The draft 

report was presented to the Joint Standards Committee Assessment 

Sub Committee on 9th August 2022, where the Sub-Committee referred 

the matter to a hearing so that the opinion arrived at by the Investigator 

and the views of Councillor E Pearson could be further explored. 

 

The Code of Conduct for City of York Council 

As required by the Localism Act 2011, City of York Council has adopted 

a Code of Conduct which sets outs the conduct expected of Councillors 

when acting as such.  The Code of Conduct for City of York Council 

appears at Annex A.  It should be noted that for this complaint, the Code 

pre October 2021 was the relevant Code of Conduct for City of York and 

it is this Code which the Investigator has considered.  Particularly 

relevant to this complaint are the following: 

 3(1) – “You must treat others with respect” 

 3(3) – “You must not bully or intimidate any person, or attempt to 

bully or intimidate them” 

 3(7) – “You must not conduct yourself in a manner which could 

reasonably be regarded as bringing the Council into disrepute, or 

your position as a Councillor into disrepute”  

 3(8) – “You must not use your position as a Councillor improperly 

to obtain any advantage or disadvantage for yourself or any other 

person, or attempt to do so” 

 

The Code of Conduct for Haxby Town Council 

As required by the Localism Act 2011, Haxby Town Council has adopted 

a Code of Conduct which sets outs the conduct expected of Councillors 

when acting as such.  The Code of Conduct for Haxby Town Council 

appears at Annex A.   Particularly relevant to this complaint are the 

following: 

 3.1 – “When a member of the Council acts, claims to claim or gives 

the impression of acting as a representative of the Council, he / 

she have the following obligations: 

o He / she behave in such a way that a reasonable person would 

regard as respectful; 

o He / she shall not act in a way which a reasonable person 

would regard as bullying or intimidatory; 

Page 3



 

 4 

o He / she shall not seek to improperly confer an advantage or 

disadvantage on any person” 

 

The Hearing Process 

The Joint Standards Committee has approved a procedure for hearings 

which can be found at Annex B.  In line with that procedure the 

complainant and subject member have been asked to indicate whether 

they intend to attend the hearing, to identify facts which they say are in 

dispute, and provide their views as to whether any part of the hearing 

should be in private.  These responses have been shared with the 

Panel. 

As part of this pre-hearing activity Councillor E Pearson has provided a 

position statement which can be found at Annex C. 

Mr S Pearson has requested the attendance of one witness, Councillor 

Carmichael. 

 

Issues to be determined 

Has Councillor E Pearson breached City of York Council’s Code of 

Conduct? 

Has Councillor E Pearson breached the Haxby Town Council Code of 

Conduct? 

In the event that the Sub Committee finds that the Code has been 

breached, it will need to determine whether a sanction should be 

imposed and if so, what sanction. 

 

Implications 

Financial  

Not applicable to this report.  

Human Resources (HR)  

Not applicable to this report. 

 

Page 4



 

 5 

Equalities  

The Equality Act 2010 places specific duties on Local Authorities, 

including the presence of a clear and concise Code of Conduct which 

prohibits unlawful discrimination and gives the public confidence in 

Councillors.  Ensuring that the Code of Conduct is maintained meets 

the Nolan Principles and supports the prohibition.   

Legal  

As detailed within the report. 

Crime and Disorder, Information Technology and Property  

Not applicable to this report.  

 

 

Author & Chief Officer 

Responsible for the 

report:  

Janie Berry 

Director of Governance &  

Monitoring Officer 

Tel:  01904 555385 

  

 

  

 
Report 

Approved 

X Date 24th August 

2022 

    

 

Specialist Implications Officer(s): 

Wards Affected:  Haxby Ward All  

 

For further information please contact the author of the report 

Background Papers:  

 Annex A – Investigating Officers report 

Page 5



 

 6 

 Annex B – Hearing Procedure 

 Annex C – Position Statement and additional material provided by 

Councillor E Pearson 

Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



P
age 63



P
age 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Annex B 

 

CITY OF YORK COUNCIL STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
HEARING PROCEDURE 
 
General Matters 
 
1.  In this procedure the term “interested parties” is used to cover the 

complainant, the subject member and the investigating officer. The 
interested parties will all be invited to attend the hearing as 
potential witnesses. 

 
2.  The Independent Persons will also be invited to attend the hearing 

in an advisory, non-voting capacity. Their views will be sought as 
to whether the evidence establishes a breach of the code of 
conduct and, if so, as to what if any penalty should be imposed.  

 
3. The Hearing Panel will be made up of members of the Standards 

Committee and there will normally be three members. The Panel 
will be supported by the Monitoring Officer or his representative 
and a democratic services officer. 

 
4. The meeting will be open to the press and public unless 

confidential or exempt information is likely to be disclosed. The 
Standards Committee considers that in general the public interest 
in seeing that complaints relating to Councillors are handled 
properly will outweigh any considerations relating to the privacy of 
the Councillor concerned but each case will be considered on its 
own merits including consideration of the privacy of other parties. 

 
5.  The hearing will normally follow the procedure set out below but 

the Chair has the discretion to vary it at any time. Such a variation 
may be considered where, for example, the Chair believes that 
doing so will be in the interests of fairness or help in establishing 
the facts of the case. 

 
6.  It will not usually be necessary for the Subject Member to be 

represented at a hearing but he or she may choose to arrange 
such representation which may be by a solicitor,  barrister or 
another person. 

 
7. The Panel may take legal advice at any time during the hearing or 

during its deliberations. The substance of any advice given to the 
Panel will normally be shared with the parties. 

 

Page 79



Annex B 

 

  
 
Preliminary procedures 
 
8.  Prior to the hearing commencing the Panel may meet privately to 

review the material presented and to agree the main lines of 
enquiry.  

 
9. At the start of the hearing, the Chair will arrange introductions of 

the Panel, its Officers, the Independent Persons and the interested 
parties. The Chair will briefly explain the procedure which the 
Panel will follow in the conduct of the hearing. The Chair will 
confirm that each interested party has seen the final report of the 
investigating officer and has had the opportunity to engage in the 
pre hearing procedures. 

 
10. The Monitoring Officer will identify whether the pre hearing 

procedures have identified any significant disagreements about the 
facts contained in the Investigating Officer’s report. The Panel will 
record the agreed facts and establish the facts in dispute which 
they will be required to rule upon.  

 
11.  If a party raises an issue which has not been raised previously 

then that party shall be required to give a full explanation to the 
Panel as to why is was not raised earlier.  The Panel may then: 

          
a. Consider whether or not to allow the issue that has been 

raised to be dealt with at the hearing 
 
b.  Consider whether the hearing should be adjourned for further 

investigations to take place. 
 

 
Determining factual disputes 
 
12. If there are disputed facts which the Panel consider relevant to 

establishing whether the Code has been breached or as to the 
seriousness of the breach then, the Panel will adopt an inquisitorial 
approach in establishing the facts. The Chair will invite members of 
the Panel to ask questions of the interested parties or any other 
potential witness present.  The Monitoring Officer may also ask 
questions. 

 

Page 80



Annex B 

 

13. Once a witness has answered questions from the Panel then the 
Chair will ask the interested parties whether there are other issues 
which ought properly to be raised with the witness. The Chair (or 
another Member) may put any such issues to the witness him or 
herself or may allow the relevant party to ask questions directly.  

 
14.  The Panel must reach a decision as to the facts it finds to be 

proven. The Panel must also make a decision as to whether the 
proven facts (including those which are agreed) show a breach of 
the code of conduct. Depending on the complexity of the case the 
Panel may consider each of those issues separately or deal with 
them together. In either case the Chair will invite the parties to 
make representations on each matter before the Panel reaches its 
decision. 

 
Panel deliberations 
 
15.  When the Panel is considering its finding of facts and whether 

those facts amount to a breach of the Code of conduct it will do so 
in private but in the presence of the Monitoring Officer, the 
Independent persons and the Democratic Services officer. 

 
16.  At the conclusion of the Panel’s deliberations, the Chair will 

publicly announce the Panel’s findings as to the facts and as to 
whether those facts show a breach of the code of conduct.  The 
Panel will give reasons for their findings. It will be normal practice 
to share the substance of any advice given by the Monitoring 
Officer and Independent persons at this stage. 

 
Determining Sanctions 
 
17. If the Panel concludes that the Subject Member has failed to 

comply with the Code of Conduct, the Chair will invite 
representations from the interested parties as to what action, if 
any, it should take. 

 
18.  The Panel will then consider whether to impose a sanction, and, if 

so, what sanction to impose and when that sanction should take 
effect. It will do so in private but in the presence of the Monitoring 
Officer, the Independent persons and the Democratic Services 
officer. 

 
19. The sanctions available to the Hearings Panel are to –  

Page 81



Annex B 

 

 

 Censure the Councillor;  
 

 Formally report its findings to the City Council or Parish 
Council for information;  

 

 Recommend to the Councillor’s Group Leader (or in the case 
of un-grouped Councillors, recommend to Council or to 
Committees) that he/she be removed from any or all Panels 
or Sub-Committees of the Council;  

 

 Recommend to the Leader of the Council that the Councillor 
be removed from the Cabinet, or removed from particular 
Portfolio responsibilities;  

 

 Recommend to Council that the Leader be removed from 
Office (if it is the Leader’ conduct that is being considered) 

 

 Instruct the Monitoring Officer to [or recommend that the 
Parish Council] arrange training for the Councillor;  

 

 Remove [or recommend to the Parish Council that the 
Councillor be removed] from all outside appointments to 
which he/she has been appointed or nominated by the 
authority [or by the Parish Council];  

 

 Withdraw [or recommend to the Parish Council that it 
withdraws] facilities provided to the Councillor by the 
Council, such as a computer, website and/or email and 
Internet access. 

 
20. The Hearings Panel has no power to suspend or disqualify the 

Councillor or to withdraw Councillors’ basic or special responsibility 
allowances. If the Panel decides to withdraw facilities from the 
Councillor it must ensure that the Councillor is not thereby 
prevented from undertaking his/her representative duties. 

 
21.  The Chair will publicly announce the decision of the Panel. The 

substance of any further advice given by the Independent Person 
and Monitoring Officer will also be shared. Written notice of the 
findings of the Panel will be given as soon as is reasonably 
practicable to the Subject Member. They will also be placed on the 

Page 82



Annex B 

 

council’s website. If the complaint was against the Subject Member 
as a parish councillor, written notice of the findings of the Panel will 
be sent to the clerk to the parish council.   

 
Other action 
 
22.  The Panel may also consider making any recommendations to the 

Council concerned with a view to promoting higher standards of 
conduct among its members. 

 

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



Annex C 

 

Cllr Edward Pearson – Standards Hearing Statement 
Hearing on Friday 2nd September 2022 at 2PM 
 
With regret I am unable to attend the hearing due to work commitments. 
I have no annual leave allowance remaining this year, and with urgent 
deadlines on a contract worth circa £2 billion, I cannot afford to take 
unpaid time off to defend myself against this malicious and politically 
motivated complaint.  
 
I must convey to the Panel my concern that the Investigator’s report is 
not satisfactory. It is lacking crucial details regarding the context and 
circumstances of the complaint, and it does not convey the correct 
chronology and sequence of events in sufficient detail. Therefore, the 
findings of the report are misinformed and factually incorrect. 
 
I would refer the panel to my pre-hearing checklist; in which I have taken 
great care to outline the context and sequence of events which have led 
to this malicious and politically motivated complaint from Cllr Guilford. 
 
Also in my pre-hearing checklist, I have outlined my concern that, 
despite a number of additional and key witnesses being suggested by 
myself and the other subjects of the original complaint, for reasons best 
known only to the Investigator, these have not been followed up. 
 
It would be unreasonable for me to expect witnesses to defend my 
position in my absence. However, I must inform the panel that the 
investigation was not exhaustive and lacks sufficient corroborating and 
supporting evidence to uphold the findings.  
 
I maintain my position that I have neither been disrespectful, nor have I 
sought an advantage for another individual. These are heinous, libellous 
accusations and a defamation of my good character. 
 
As I have outlined in my pre-hearing checklist, the motivations for this 
complaint must be seen in the context of the Haxby Town Council by-
election campaign. The additional, later complaint regarding seeking an 
advantage for another person should also be considered in this light, 
alongside the situation surrounding the Town Council’s Committee 
structures at this time. Namely, that the Town Council was outrageously 
excluding the newly elected Councillor Ruth Pearson from partaking in 
Town Council meetings between her election victory in late November 
2021 until the Annual Council in May 2022. 
 

Page 85



Annex C 

 

The complainant is a Conservative Party member, and it should be 
noted that he has made multiple complaints about every single Lib Dem 
Councillor in Haxby and Wigginton (City Cllrs Cuthbertson, Hollyer, and 
Pearson (myself), and Town Cllr Ruth Pearson). This complaint should 
have been disregarded as politically motivated and should never have 
got to this hearing stage. 
 
I would remind the Panel that there have been 8 or 9 subsequent 
standards complaints regarding Haxby Town Council members between 
October 2021 and August 2022; while this complaint investigation has 
been ongoing. The Joint Standards Committee Assessment Sub-
Committee has considered these subsequent complaints together and 
decided to deal with them informally through an action plan of training 
and development, including conflict resolution. In this assessment, the 
Sub Committee noted that the number of issues arising from Haxby 
Town Council indicated a “level of dysfunction”. Again, this context must 
be considered as part of this hearing, and I would hope that this 
complaint is handled by the Panel with the same degree of sensitivity. 
 
When asked by the Investigator if I would be willing to engage in 
mediation, my answer has always been, and remains, yes. 
 
This is the first complaint that has ever been made about my conduct. I 
have good, cordial, friendly and professional relationships with most 
Councillors from across the political spectrum, on both the City and 
Town Councils. I have never made a complaint about anyone else. 
Whatever the Panel decide, I will continue to place the needs of my 
residents at the top of my agenda, and I look forward to being able to 
concentrate on working in their best interests, as I am elected so to do. 
 
I got into local politics to make a positive difference to my community; 
and this complaint against me has cast a long shadow over my Council 
activities. The complaints process has been demoralising, demotivating, 
disruptive, distressing and ultimately deeply saddening. This is 
especially as it has been ongoing for 10 months (when the process is 
not supposed to take longer than 3 months). I am so sorry that the Joint 
Standards Committee and Assessment sub-Committee have had to 
spend so much time dealing with this complaint; and that so much 
taxpayer money and resources have been spent on its investigation. 

 
Cllr Edward Pearson 
22/08/2022 

Page 86


	Agenda
	4 Complaint Against Councillor E Pearson (City of York Council and Haxby Town Council)
	Annex A - Report - Pearson
	Annex B - Hearing Procedure
	Annex C - Hearing Statement - Cllr Edward Pearson


